








My dear Parishioners, 

Feast of St. Matthew 

September 21, 1955 

Our heart pulsates to the strain of genuine joy and gratitude. Seventeen years have elapsed since we made 

our appearance here to succeed Fr. James P. Welsh, of happy memory. It was he who organized the parish 

and endeared himself to all who knew him because of the self-sacrificing struggle he made in the face of 

circumstances that might have discouraged many other priests. 

It was a rather gloomy horizon that presented itself to "Yours Truly" as we fashioned in a vivid imagination 

the mental picture of a group of buildings in harmony with the general material complexion of the parish 

and also expressive of the noble efforts of its people. 

May we not then feel pardonably proud and rejoice at the fulfillment of one of our fondest dreams. And from 

the very source of this joy springs a compelling gratitude which seeks expression in our every thought, word 

and action. 

Thanks to Almighty God, who has lavished countless favors and graces upon us; thanks to His Eminence 

Edward Cardinal Mooney for the implied confidence he placed in us in our assignment to St. Matthew 

parish; thanks to the energetic and faithful assistants who worked with me during these 17 years. Finally, a 

most profound and sincere thanks to our parishioners for their patience, loyalty and generous support without 

which we would have failed completely. 

Most gratefully yours, 

JosEPH L. FILLION, Pastor 











I--IISTOR Y OF THE PARISH 

The dedication of St. Matthew Church marks the fulfillment of a dream which began twenty-nine years ago. 

St. 1atthew Parish was founded in December, 1926. The vast, sparsely settled parish, bounded on the south 

by Waveney Avenue and on the west by Nottingham, was without boundaries on the north and east. 

Farmers lent their horses to clear the land and turn the sod for the first parish building, the present hall at the 

comer of Harper and Buckingham. The building served as both temporary church and auditorium in the 

early years. 

Father James P. Welsh was appointed the first pastor. When Father Welsh came to look over the territory 

assigned to him, only five homes were visible from the corner of Harper and Three Mile. 

Celebrate First Mass 

The first Mass was celebrated in St. Matthew parish on May 22, the fifth Sunday after Easter, 1927. Shortly 

thereafter, Father Welsh moved into the rectory at 5966 Buckingham, and the fledgling parish began its 

phenomenal growth. 

Father Welsh was not only pastor, but doctor, benefactor, friend, advisor, and co-worker to the people in his 

care. It was never too late or too early for him to answer a call when he was needed. He dug deep into his 

pockets, and even through them, to assist his people and carry on the burden of the new parish. 

Loyal workers and generous donors soon presented themselves, and St. Matthew Parish was definitely on 

the map. 

Form Parish Organizations 

The first parish organizations were formed in 1927. Local chapters of the Holy Name Society and the Con­

fraternity of Christian Mothers were started to enrich the spiritual life of the people. 

A men's and women's club were organized for social and fund-raising purposes. 

An attendance of 16 to 20 was considered splendid at the first meetings of the Women's Club. Today it has 

over 250 members. 

The St. Vincent de Paul Society was organized early in the parish, the men silently making their rounds, 

lending their time and giving out of their own pockets to help the needy. 

The League of the Sacred Heart was formed, and the members distributed pamphlets door to door to all 

the parishioners. 



Father Welsh 

Organizations Work Together 

The various parish organizations worked together on parish parties and affairs. 

Many "get-acquainted parties" were held for the men, women, and young people of the 

Parish. 

Box socials were popular. Many of the parishioners lent their homes for benefit parties. 

One couple put on a Moose Dinner for the whole parish at Buckingham Hall. 

The Women's Club sponsored 25-cent afternoon card parties and evening Bingo parties. 

The women solicited on foot for donations for the parties, over unpaved streets and 

broken sidewalks which were almost impassable in winter. 

Donations would be a jar of homemade jelly, a pound of coffee, 25 cents in cash, some­

times even a dollar. 

Mrs. Welsh, mother of the pastor, and his sister, Miss Elizabeth Welsh, were members of the women's 

organizations. Father Welsh and his mother and sister attended most of the parish parties and other affairs 

in the early days of the parish, and enjoyed them and the songfests which followed. 

More Property Purchased 

Anticipating a building boom from Gratiot Avenue south, and north from Mack Avenue, the parish purchased 

property for further expansion at Whittier and McKinney Avenues, present site of Dominican High School. 

The real estate development south of Harper progressed more rapidly than that on the north, so additional 

property, the present site, on Harper between Audubon and Whittier, was purchased and earmarked for the 

future development of St. Matthew Parish. 

Build New School 

In 1930, after three years of generous gtvmg, plus innumerable bake sales, bazaars, and other fund-raising 

ventures, the first section of St. Matthew School, a convent, and a new church auditorium were built. It was 
a gala day, indeed, when ground was broken for the new building. 

A home adjacent to the church property was purchased for a rectory. St. Matthew Parish was growing. 

Parish is Tested 

The '30's brought their problems. Work was scarce, and money, too. 

Despite stalwart parishioners, our financial indebtedness, due es­

pecially to our extensive property holdings, which proved burden­

some, increased. Yet our spiritual progress, undiminished by our 

straitened financial status, was steady. New people were attracted to 

the parish. More homes were built. With the passing of the '30's, 

our vigorous parish resumed its steady growth. Women's Club Pioneers 



Father Fillion Appointed 

St. Matthew School, 
Audubon and Harper, 
built 1930. 

Father Joseph Fillion, our present pastor, succeeded Father Welsh in June of 1938. To him fell the task of 

paying off our accumulated indebtedness, which was considerable. Aided by staunch parishioners, Father Fillion 

began to show remarkable progress in getting us out of the red. 

The war years of the '40's saw us increase in stature. Overcrowded conditions were alleviated somewhat, when 

Our Lady Queen of Peace Parish was formed. Much of its territory had been serviced by St. Matthew Church. 

Yet our early maturity left us without adequate school rooms. 

Necessary expansion was not possible until our debt was liquidated. This was soon accomplished, and in 1949 

an addition to the convent was completed. 

Plan For New Church 

Immediately, Father Fillion began to dream and save for the crownmg gem of the parish, our new church. 

By 1953, with $300,000 already earmarked for the project, an intensive Building Fund Drive was organ­

ized. Under the leadership of Father Fillion, the men of the parish formed a Building Fund Committee, and 

enlisted workers to canvass every home for contributions 

to the fund. 

So prompt and generous was the response of the people 

of the parish that ground was blessed and broken for 

the new church on October 11, 1953. 

Eight months later, on June 27, 1954, Monsignor 

Henry E. Donnelly, Dean of the Eastern Deanery, now 

Bishop, laid the cornerstone for the new church. 

Fr. Welsh occupied the second parish house at 
5999 Whittier. It was used until 1955. 



Fr. Fillion blessing the ground before the 
ground-breaking ceremonies for the new 
church. Shown with him are Matthew 
Lalewiczy General Contractor, and Fred Laf­
ferty of Donaldson and Meier, Architects. 

---------------------------------------------------------� 

A long cherished dream begins to materialize 
as Fr. Fillion breaks the sod for the new 
church, Oct. 11, 1953. 

Construction proceeded rapidly, and m September, 1955, two years after the ground breaking, the building 

was completed. 

On September 21, the Feast of St. Matthew, the new church was dedicated. Approximately 100 members of the 

clergy, and a record crowd of parishioners, and their families attended the dedication ceremony. 

The first Mass in the new St. Matthew Church was celebrated the following Sunday, September 25th. 

The completion of St. Matthew Church is the realization of a dream shared by the late Father Welsh, our 

founder, Father Fillion, our Pastor, and the people of St. Matthew Parish. 

To all those who shared in making this dream come true, St. Matthew Church is more than a monument of 

stone and marble. It is a symbol of faith, and work, and sacrifice, the spiritual qualities required of those who 

would build a dwelling place for God. 

Below, assisted by Fr. Fillion, Msgr. (now Bishop) Henry E. Donnelly blessed the cornerstone of the new church on 
June 27, 1954. 






















